
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SO UTH ERN DISTRICT OF FLO D

-  2 5 2 gq-wlLko s18Case No:
18 U.S.C. j 1343
18 U.S.C. j 2 / XOR lt Kh'
18 U.S.C. j 981 (a)(1)(C)

UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

VS.

ALEXEI RIVERO,

Defendant.

/

INDICTM ENT

The Grand Jury charges that:

GENER AL ALLEGATION S

At various tim es relevant to this Indictment:

Florida Carrier & Brokerage Service, lnc. (çTlorida Carrier'') was a licensed and

bonded freight trucking company with its principal place of business located at 9500 NW  36th

Avenue, M iami, Florida 33147.

26, 1999.

Florida Carrier was incorporated in Florida on or about January

ALEXEI RIVERO was a resident of M iam i, Florida. According to Florida

Division of Cop oration records, RIVERO was the operations m anager at Florida Carrier from on

or about June 3, 2003, through on or about October 29, 2007, and then vice-president tltrough on

or about July 21, 2008. RIVERO exercised m anagement and control of Florida Carrier and was

authorized to sign any and all legal documents on behalf of Florida Carrier.
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The United States Postal Service (EEUSPS'') is a United States Government agency,

which entered into contracts with suppliers, such as Florida Carrier, to transport United States mail

over highways between designated United States postal facilities. These Highway Contract

Routes (66HCR'') are competitive, negotiated procurements, and award is based upon plices and

other factors as set out in a USPS notice.

As part of a contract negotiation, the HCR contract supplier is required to prepare

a Postal Form 7468A, Highway Transportation Contract - Cost Worksheet (ûCPS Fonn 7468A''),

along with other contract docum ents. PS Form 7468A requires the supplier to provide quotes for:

(1) ttstraight tinïe'' (the minimum hourly rate of pay); (2) estimated base payroll taxes which

included Social Security, W orkm an's Compensation, federal unemployment compensation and

state unemployment compensation taxes; and (3) estimated base flinge benefits which included

health and welfare, vacation, holiday and pension benefits.

The McNamara-o'l-lara Service Contract Act (1tSCA'') covers contracts and bid

specifications in excess of $2,500, entered into with federal agencies, the principal purpose of

which is to furnish service through the use of selwice em ployees. The SCA provides covered

service workers the right to receive from federal contractors no less than the wage rate and fringe

benetits found prevailing in the locality, as provided by the United States Department of Labor.

To satisfy the requirem ents of the SCA, a portion of the m oney the USPS paid to Florida Carrier

was specitically designated to fund health and welfare benetits (sometimes referred to as ççfringe

benefits').

Between in and around July 2007 and December 2012, Florida Carrier entered into

a series of HCRS with the USPS to transport United States mail between various U SPS' locations.
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ln addition to providing funds to Florida Carrier under the HCRS to ftmd employee

fringe benefits, the USPS also provided funds to Flolida Carrier to cover the employer's portion

of payroll taxes, which Florida Carrier was required to rem it to state and federal agencies on behalf

of its drivers.

Omega Freight Corporation (frmega Freighf') was a Florida corporation, which

was incorporated on or about October 10, 2007. It was voluntarily dissolved on Aplil 13, 2012.

Generation Xpress LLC (treneration Xpress'') was a Florida corporation, which

was incorporated on or about September 22, 201 1. lts principal place of business was listed as

9500 NW  36th Avenue
, M iami, Florida 33147. ALEXEI RIVERO was the m anaging m ember

of Generation Xpress.

CO UNTS 1-2

W IRE FM UD

(18 U.S.C. j 1343)

Paragraphs 1 through 9 of the General Allegations section of this lndictm ent are re-

alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

From in or around M arch 201 1, through in or around June 2013, in M iami-Dade

County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant,

ALEXEI RW ERO ,

did knowingly, and with intent to defraud, devise and intend to devise a schem e and artitice to

defraud, and to obtain money and property by m eans of m aterially false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations, and prom ises, knowing that the pretenses, representations, and prom ises were

false and fraudulent when made, and, for the purpose of executing such schem e and artifice to

defraud, did knowingly transmit and cause to be transm itted, by m eans of wire comm unication in
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interstate and foreign comm erce, certain writings, signs, signals, pictures or sound, in violation of

Title l 8, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2.

PURPOSE O F THE SCHEM E AND ARTIFICE

lt was the purpose of the schem e and artifice for the defendant to unlawfully enrich

himself by, among other things: (a) misclassifying employees hired as dlivers to work on HCR

routes as independent contractors; (b) misappropriating approximately $ 1.5 million in ftmds paid

by USPS to Florida Carrier for funding Florida Carrier employees' fringe benefits; (c)

misappropriating approximately $1.2 million in funds paid by the USPS to Florida Carrier which

represented the employer's share of drivers' payroll taxes which were to be remitted to Federal

and State taxing authorities on behalf of Florida Carrier drivers; and (d) diverting the

m isappropriated funds for his personal use and benefit and to further the scheme to defraud.

M ANNER AND M EANS

The manner and means by which the defendant sought to accomplish the purpose of the

scheme and artifice included am ong other things the following:

ALEXEI RIVERO , on behalf of Flolida Carrier, prepared and caused to be

prepared PS Form s 7468A and related docum ents to bid on U SPS highway contract routes which

docum ents incorporated the provisions of the Service Contract Act. Pursuant to the Service

Contract Act drivers hired by Florida Carrier should have been hired as employees and provided

with fringe benefits. RIVERO fraudulently provided on PS Fonns 7468A estim ates for fringe

benefits and payroll taxes as costs which Florida Carrier expected to incur in perform ing the

services on HCRS.

In those instances when Florida Carrier was the successful bidder, ALEXEI

RIVERO hired individuals as drivers to operate on the highway contract routes. Contrary to

4
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RIVERO 'S representations to USPS, however, these individuals were hired as independent

contractors, rather than employees, and were not provided with any fringe benefits, such as health

and welfare, vacation and holiday. ln addition, contrary to RIVERO 'S representations to USPS

Florida Carrier did not pay federal and state authorities the em ployer's portion of payroll taxes

including Social Security, M edicare, and unemployment tax.

lnstead, ALEXEI RIVERO misappropriated for his personal benefit and use, and

the general operating expenses of Florida Carrier, the funds paid by the USPS to Florida Carrier

for payroll taxes and fringe benefits.

ALEXEI RIVERO concealed and misrepresented, and caused to be concealed

and m isrepresented, the existence and purpose of the schem e.

USE OF TH E W IRES

8. On or about the dates specitied as to each count below, the defendant, ALEXEI

RIVERO, for the purpose of executing the aforesaid schem e and artitice to defraud, and to obtain

money and property by m eans of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, did

knowingly transmit and cause to be transm itted, by means of wire comm unication in interstate and

foreign comm erce, certain writings, signs,signals, pictures, and sounds as m ore particularly

described below :

CO UNT APPROX. DATE DESCRIPTIO N OF W IRE CO M M UNICATION

1 M ay 31, 2013 USPS wire transfer in the amount of $427,728.47 from St.
Louis, M issoul'i, to Florida Carrier's Ocean Bank account

xxxxxx0605 in M iami, Florida

2 June 2 1, 2013 USPS wire transfer in the amount of $25,385.28 from St.
Louis, M issouri, to Flolida Carrier's Ocean Bank account

xxxxxx0605 in M iam i, Flolida

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2.
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FO RFEITURE

(18 U.S.C. j 981(a)(1)(C))

The allegations of this lndictment are realleged and by this reference fully

incorporated herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to the United States of certain property

in which the defendant has an interest.

Upon conviction of a violation of Title l 8, United States Code, Section 1343, as

alleged in this lndictment, the defendant A'I.EXEI RIVERO shall forfeit to the United States,

pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 98 l (a)(1)(C), as incorporated by Title 28, United

States Code, Section 2461(c), any property, real or personal, which constitutes or is derived from

proceeds traceable to such violation. The property which is subject to forfeiture includes, but is

not limited to, the following: a sum of money equal in value to the property, real or personal, which

constitutes or is derived from  proceeds traceable to the violations alleged in this lndictm ent, which

the United States will seek as a forfeiture moneyjudgment as part of the defendant's sentence. All

pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 98 1(a)(1)(C), as made applicable by Title 28,

United States Code, Section 2461(c), and the procedure set forth at Title 2 1, United States Code,

Section 853.
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tJx IT D STATES ITT'ORNEY

<

LOIS FOSTER-STEERS

ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

V.

ALEXEI RIVERO,

Defendant.
/

CASE NO.

CERTIFICATE OF TRIAL ATTORNEY*

Superseding Case Inform ation:

Court Division'. (select one)

X M iami Key W est
-  

FTL W PB FTP

l do hereby certify that:

New Defendantts) Yes No
Number of New Defendants
Total number of counts

l have carefully considered the allegations of the indictment, the number of defendants, the number
of probable witnesses and the legal complexities of the lndictment/lnformation attached hereto.

l am aware that the information s pu plied on this statement will be relied upon by the Judges of this
d scheduling criminal trials under the mandate of the Speedy TrialCourt in setting their calendars an

Act, Title 28 U.S.C. Section 3161.

Intepreter: (Yes or No)
language and/or dialectList

This case will take 10

NO

days for the parties to try.

Please check appropriate category and type of offense listed below:

(Check only one) (Check only one)

l 0 to 5 days
11 6 to 10 days
IlI l 1 to 20 days
IV 2 1 to 60 days
V 61 days and over

6. Has this case been previously filed in this District Court? (Yes or No) NO
lf yes:
Judge: Case No.
(Attach copy pf dispositive ordel)
Has a complalnt been filed in thls matter? (Yes or No) NO
lf yes:
M agistrate Case No.
Related M iscellaneous numbers:

Defendantls) in federal custody as of
Defendantts) in state custody as of
Rule 20 from the District of
Is this a potential death penalty case? (Yes or No) NO

Petty
M inor
M isdem.
Felony

X

U

Does this case originate from a matter pending in the Northern Region of the U.S. Attorney's Oftice
prior to October 14, 20037 Yes No X

FOSTE -STEERS
ASSISTANT UM TED STATES ATTORNEY
FL Bar No. / Court I.D. No. 0480509

*penalty Sheetts) attached
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT CO URT

SOUTH ERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defendant's Nam e: ALEXEI RIVERO

Case No.'

Counts #: 1-2

Title 18. United States Codes Section 1343

* Max. Penalty: Twenty (20) years' imprisonment as to each count

Count # :

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

eRefers only to possible term of incarceration, does not include possible fines, restitution,

special assessm ents, parole term s, or forfeitures that m ay be applicable.
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